## NORTH CAROLINA PUBLIC HEALTH ASSOCIATION, INC.

60th Annual Meeting



October 6-8, 1971

CONVENTION CENTER
Winston-Salem, North Carolina

## Host

#### FORSYTH COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

#### **Local Arrangements Committee**

Chairman James A. Finger, M.D.

Budget James A. Finger, M.D. & Mrs. Nancy Hopkins

Publicity Miss Connie Stafford

Housing Mr. Ross Mecham & Mr. Jerry Webb

Registration Mrs. M. Matheson, Mr. Harold McCallum &

Mr. Ross Tabor

Flowers & Decorations Mrs. Lois Conrad & Mrs. Robbie Priddy

Food Mr. Martin Ericson & Mr. Dean Lee

Physical Arrangements Miss Connie Stafford & Mr. Jack Miller

Hospitality & Information Mr. Allen Smith & Mrs. Peggy Lemon

Exhibits Mr. Gilbert Davis

Refreshments & Entertainment Mr. Joe Livingston & Mrs. Caroline Boyd

## NORTH CAROLINA PUBLIC HEALTH ASSOCIATION, INC.

60th Annual Meeting



October 6-8, 1971

CONVENTION CENTER
Winston-Salem, North Carolina

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
Calendar of Events	3,4
Local Arrangements Committee	1FC
NCPHA Program  First General Session Second General Session Third General Session Fourth General Session	5-9
NCPHA Business Meeting	7
NCPHA Honors and Awards Banquet	8
North Carolina Academy of Preventive Medicine and Public Health	10
North Carolina Conference of Health Directors	10
Home Health Agency Conference	10
Section Meetings	11-18
Dental Health Environmental Health Health Directors Health Education Laboratory Mental Health Nutrition Physical Therapy Public Health Management Public Health Nursing Secretarial Statistics and Epidemiology	11 12,15 13,16 17 15 11 11 13,15
Venereal Disease Control	17
Program Participants	19-21
Governing Council	22 22 22 25
Committees	23-24
Past President	26-27
Contributing Members	28

#### CALENDAR OF EVENTS

#### Tuesday, October 5, 1971

12:00 noon Governing Council Luncheon HILTON INN and Business Meeting Parlors D and E

#### Wednesday, October 6, 1971

10:00 a.m8:00 p.m.	Registration	CONVENTION CENTER Upper Lobby
12:00 noon-8:00 p.m.	Exhibits Open	Exhibit Hall 2
9:30 a.m.	President's Coffee Executive Committee, NCPHA, and Health Directors	HILTON INN President's Suite
10:30 a.mnoon	North Carolina Conference of Health Directors	CONVENTION CENTER Conference Room 2
10:00 a.mnoon	Home Health Agency Conference	CONVENTION CENTER Main Hall, Section 2
1:00-2:30 p.m.	Joint Section Meeting Health Directors and Public Health Management	CONVENTION CENTER Exhibit Hall, Section 1
1:30-4:00 p.m.	Physical Therapy Section	CONVENTION CENTER Conference Room 1
2:00-5:00 p.m.	Environmental Health Section Business Meeting	CONVENTION CENTER Main Hall, Section 3
2:00-3:00 p.m.	Health Education Section Business Meeting	CONVENTION CENTER Conference Room 2
2:00-4:00 p.m.	Laboratory Section	CONVENTION CENTER Conference Rooms 5, 6 & 7
2:00-4:00 p.m.	Public Health Nursing Section	CONVENTION CENTER Main Hall, Section 2
2:00-4:00 p.m.	Statistics and Epidemiology Section	CONVENTION CENTER Exhibit Hall, Section 3
2:30-3:00 p.m.	Health Directors Section Business Meeting	CONVENTION CENTER Exhibit Hall, Section 1
2:30 p.m.	Public Health Management Section Business Meeting	CONVENTION CENTER Lower Lobby, South Alcove
3:00-4:00 p.m.	Health Education Section Program	CONVENTION CENTER Conference Room 2
3:00-3:30 p.m.	North Carolina Academy of Preventive Medicine and Public Health Business Meeting	CONVENTION CENTER Exhibit Hall, Section 1
3:30-5:00 p.m.	North Carolina Academy of Preventive Medicine and Public Health Program	CONVENTION CENTER Exhibit Hall, Section 1
5:30 p.m.	Academy of Preventive Medicine and Public Health Social Hour and Dinner (Members and Guests)	HILTON INN Parlor
8:00-10:00 p.m.	First General Session	CONVENTION CENTER Main Hall, Section 1

#### Thursday, October 7, 1971

8:00 a.m5:00 p.m.	Registration	CONVENTION CENTER Upper Lobby
9:00 a.m5:30 p.m.	Exhibits OPEN	CONVENTION CENTER Exhibit Hall, Section 2
7:30 a.m.	Past President's Breakfast	HILTON INN
7:30 a.m.	Exhibitors' Breakfast	HILTON INN
8:45 a.mnoon	Second General Session and Business Meeting, NCPHA	CONVENTION CENTER Main Hall, Section 1
12:30 p.m.	Dutch Buffet	CONVENTION CENTER Main Hall, Section 3
12:30 p.m.	Dental Health Section Luncheon and Meeting	CONVENTION CENTER Conference Rooms 5, 6 & 7
12:30 p.m.	Nutrition Section Luncheon and Business Meeting	HILTON INN Parlor C
1:00 p.m.	Public Health Nursing Section Luncheon and Meeting	CONVENTION CENTER Main Hall, Section 2
1:00 p.m.	Laboratory Section Luncheon and Meeting	TANGLEWOOD PARK
1:30-4:00 p.m.	Secretarial Section	CONVENTION CENTER Exhibit Hall, Section 1
2:00 p.m.	Environmental Health Section	CONVENTION CENTER Main Hall, Section 1
2:00-4:00 p.m.	Joint Session Meeting Health Education and Nutrition	HILTON INN Parlor C
2:00 p.m.	Mental Health Section	CONVENTION CENTER Conference Room 2
2:00 p.m.	Statistics and Epidemiology Section	FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH Meeting Room
2:00-4:30 p.m.	Venereal Disease Control Section	CONVENTION CENTER Exhibit Hall, Section 3
6:00 p.m.	NCPHA Social Hour	CONVENTION CENTER Upper Lobby
7:00 p.m.	Honors and Awards Banquet (Third General Session)	CONVENTION CENTER Main Hall, Section 3
9:00 p.m1:00 a.m.	Dance	CONVENTION CENTER Main Hall, Section 2

## Friday, October 8, 1971

8:00-10:00 a.m.	Registration	CONVENTION CENTER Upper Lobby
9:30-11:00 a.m.	Fourth General Session	CONVENTION CENTER Main Hall, Section 1
12:00 noon	Old and New Officers' Luncheon	HILTON INN President's Suite

# NORTH CAROLINA PUBLIC HEALTH ASSOCIATION

## 60th Annual Program

## Look to the People—Our Best Resource

On the diamond anniversary of NCPHA we are blessed with jewels, at work in 1911 as in 1971, our people.

Individuals and groups, in public health work, in other social agencies, on boards and committees, in governmental bodies, the volunteers and the consumers—all concerned and contributing so that the health of North Carolinians will be promoted, protected and preserved.

#### FIRST GENERAL SESSION

8:00 p.m.

Wednesday, October 6, 1971

CONVENTION CENTER

Main Hall #1

Presiding

Mrs. Jean Lassiter, President

Invocation

The Reverend Thomas Smith, St. Timothy's

Episcopal Church

Greetings

Mr. Franklin R. Shirley, Mayor, City of Winston-

Salem

Dr. James Finger, Director, Forsyth County Health

Department

Mr. David Darr, Chairman, Forsyth County

Commissioners

Response

Mr. Leonard Dawson, Vice-President

Message

Dr. John Glasson, President-Elect, Medical Society of the State of North Carolina

Introduction of Speaker

Dr. W. Fred Mayes, Dean, School of Public Health, University of North Carolina

#### KEYNOTE ADDRESS

James R. Kimmey, M.D., Executive Director American Public Health Association



Dr. Kimmey

#### SECOND GENERAL SESSION

8:45-12:00 noon

Thursday,

CONVENTION CENTER October 7, 1971

Presiding

Mr. C. Scott Venable, Past-President

Presidential Address Mrs. Jean Lassiter, President

Presentations

Honorable Hargrove Bowles, Senator, North

Carolina General Assembly

Mr. John Jordan, Legislative Representative of North Carolina Public Health Association to

1971 General Assembly

#### LEGISLATIVE PROCESS AND PUBLIC HEALTH IN NORTH CAROLINA



Senator Bowles



Mr. Jordan

Break

**Business Meeting, NCPHA** 

#### THIRD GENERAL SESSION

Thursday, October 7, 1971

6:00 p.m.

Social Hour

CONVENTION CENTER

Upper Lobby

7:00 p.m.

Honors and Awards

Banquet

CONVENTION CENTER

Main Hall #3

Presiding

Mrs. Jean Lassiter, President

Invocation

Chaplain Charles F. Wilson Bowman-Gray School of Medicine

Introductions

Mr. Henry Woodard, Vice-President

(Resigned)

Presentation of

Awards

W. P. Richardson, M.D.

University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

Introduction of Officers

9:00-

1:00 a.m.

Dance

CONVENTION CENTER

Main Hall #2

(admission by badge only)

#### FOURTH GENERAL SESION

9:30-

Friday,

11:00 a.m. October 8, 1971 MAIN HALL #1

Session Theme: Community Involvement

Presiding

Lydia Holley, President-Elect

Presentation

W. Burns Jones, M.D. Assistant State Health Director

Panel Moderator

William T. Herzog, Director Continuing Education Services

Health Affairs, U.N.C.

Panel Members

Miss Becky Bowden

Community Fluoridation Program
North Carolina State Board of Health

Mrs. Marjorie Debnam

Health Subcommittee

Raleigh Community Relations Committee

Mr. John Hatch Community Consultant

Health Services Research Center, U.N.C.

Mr. John P. Kennedy, Jr.

Board of Directors

North Carolina Tuberculosis and Respiratory

Disease Association

Mr. Carl Tuttle

Past Chairman

Regional Health Council of Eastern

Appalachia

Summary of 60th Annual Meeting

"Variations on a Theme"

Jacob Koomen, M.D. State Health Director

## North Carolina Academy of Preventive Medicine and Public Health

Wednesday, October 6

3:00-3:30 p.m.

BUSINESS MEETING CONVENTION CENTER

Conference Room 5

Presiding

Sarah T. Morrow, M.D., President

3:30 p.m.

Scientific Session (Guest welcome)

Presidina

**CONVENTION CENTER** 

Conference Room 5

Sarah T. Morrow, M.D., President

The Tempest in Our Teapot: Drug Abuse

Everett H. Ellingwood, Jr., M.D. Duke University Medical Center

5:30 p.m.

Social Hour and Dinner HILTON INN

## North Carolina Conference of Health Directors

Wednesday, October 6

10:30 a.m.

CONVENTION CENTER
Conference Room 2

Presidina Carl Hami

Carl Hammer, M.D., Chairman

## **Home Health Agency Conference**

Wednesday, October 6

10:00-12:00 Organizational Meetina

CONVENTION CENTER
Main Hall, Section 2

noon Presiding

Mrs. Frances Hutchison, Chairman

## **Section Meetings**

Wednesday, October 6

#### HEALTH DIRECTORS AND PUBLIC HEALTH MANAGEMENT SECTIONS

1:00-

2:30 p.m.

CONVENTION CENTER

Exhibit Hall #1

Marjorie Strawn, M.D.

Chairman, Health Directors Section

Presentation

Presiding

Senator David Flaherty North Carolina General Assembly

2:30-3:00 p.m.

Business Meeting, Health Directors Section

Exhibit Hall #1

2:30-4:00 p.m. Business Meeting, Public Health Management Section

Lower Lobby, South Alcove

Presiding

Mrs. Mildred Kerbaugh, Chairman

#### PHYSICAL THERAPY SECTION

Presiding: Sally Farrand, Chairman

1:30 p.m.

CONVENTION CENTER

Conference Room 1

Prime Movers in Health Program Development: What are They?

John T. Gentry, M.D.

University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

Mrs. Jane Mathews

University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

**BUSINESS MEETING** 3:30 p.m.

#### ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SECTION

2:00-5:00 p.m. **CONVENTION CENTER** Main Hall, Section 3

Presidina

Stacy Covil, Program Chairman

#### Who Will Manage Our Environment in the Seventies?

Monroe T. Morgan, Ph.D. East Tennessee University

Nicholas Pohlit National Environmental Health Association

Hayes Ratledae The Dale Carnegie Courses

#### HEALTH EDUCATION SECTION

2:00-3:00 p.m.

BUSINESS MEETING CONVENTION CENTER Conference Room 2

Presiding

Miss Emily Tyler, Chairman

3:00-4:00 p.m.

**PROGRAM** 

Presiding

Howard Fitts, Ph.D., Program

Chairman

#### The Role of the Health Educator in Dealing with Controversial Issues

Miss Donna Upsom North Carolina Heart Association

Howard Barnhill Charlotte Model Cities Community Service Center

Elizabeth McMahan, Ed.D. University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

#### LABORATORY SECTION

Presiding: Marvin Palmer, Chairman

2:00 p.m.

CONVENTION CENTER
Conference Room 5

Training Activities at the Department of Parasitology and Laboratory Practice, School of Public Health, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

## **Laboratory Practice Training Program**

Hilton Goulson, Ph.D. University of North Carolina

Research Project: Characteristics of Pseudomonas spp. and analysis of the organisms and their by-products by gasliquid chromatography

Charles M. Kaltenbach Laboratory Practice Training Program

## Training for Teachers in Laboratory Practice

Bryan R. Reep, Dr.P.H. Sandhills Community College

Continuing Education Activities at U.N.C. and N. C. State Board of Health

> Edna H. Knott N. C. State Board of Health

3:30 p.m.

**BUSINESS MEETING** 

### PUBLIC HEALTH NURSING SECTION

2:00-4:00 p.m.

CONVENTION CENTER

Main Hall, Section 2

Presiding

Mrs. Loletta Faulkenberry, Program

Chairman

Program

**Outer Limits** 

Panelists:

Mrs. Evelyn Aabel Family Nurse Practitioner

Mrs. Betty Compton Family Nurse Practitioner

Walter Issacs

University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

C. Glenn Pickard, Jr., M.D.

University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

David G. Warren, LL.B. Institute of Government

#### STATISTICS AND EPIDEMIOLOGY SECTION

Presiding: Elizabeth J. Coulter, Ph.D.

2:00 p.m.

CONVENTION CENTER Exhibit Hall #3

## Current Application of Health Indicators in Environmental Studies

William C. Nelson, Ph.D. Environmental Protection Agency

Gene R. Lowrimore Environmental Protection Agency

John F. Finklea, M.D. Environmental Protection Agency

C. J. Nelson Environmental Protection Agency

#### Recent Developments in the Epidemiology of Byssinosis and Pesticide Problems in North Carolina and Administrative Actions to Meet Them

Martin Hines, D.V.M.
North Carolina State Board of Health

## Lithium in Drinking Water and Mental Health in North

A. Wouter Voors, M.D., Dr.P.H. University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

#### **New Concepts in Data Handling Systems**

Marvin C. Templeton National Center for Health Statistics

. Marshall C. Evans National Center for Health Statistics

## Biostatistical Consulting at the North Carolina State Board of Health

James J. Palmersheim, Ph.D. North Carolina State Board of Health

## Section Meetings Continued

Thursday, October 7

#### DENTAL HEALTH SECTION

Presiding: J. Wesley Mainwaring, Jr., D.D.S.

12:30 p.m. Luncheon

CONVENTION CENTER Conference Rooms 5, 6 & 7

BUSINESS MEETING

Program: Community Support for Dental Health

Panel Moderator

Miss Emma Carr Bivins

North Carolina State Board of Health

#### NUTRITION AND HEALTH EDUCATION SECTIONS

12:30 p.m. Nutrition Section Luncheon and Business Meeting HILTON INN

Parlor C

Presidina

Miss Asenath Cooke, Chairman

2:00-4:00 p.m. Joint Section Meeting

Presiding

Ivan Jones, Ph.D.

Program Chairman, Nutrition Section

Howard M. Fitts, Ph.D.

Program Chairman, Health Education Section

#### Contemporary Nutrition Problems: A Challenge to Educators

Howard A. Schneider, Ph.D.

University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

#### PUBLIC HEALTH NURSING SECTION

1:00 p.m.

Luncheon

CONVENTION CENTER

Main Hall, Section 2

Presiding

Mrs. Martha Jacob, Chairman

**BUSINESS MEETING** 

Program: Caring Enough to Work Together

Eloise R. Lewis, Ed.D. University of North Carolina, Greensboro

### Summary of Wednesday and Thursday Program Sessions

Miss June Watson

North Carolina Memorial Hospital, Chapel Hill

#### LABORATORY SECTION

1:00 p.m. Luncheon

TANGLEWOOD PARK

#### SECRETARIAL SECTION

Presiding: Mrs. Gwen Lassiter, Chairman

1:30-4:00 p.m. CONVENTION CENTER Exhibit Hall, Section 1

Presentations:

**Vital Statistics** 

Mrs. Wilma Barbour

North Carolina State Board of Health

Personnel Forms

J. P. Johnson

North Carolina State Board of Health

**Project Funds in Budgets and Project Reports** 

John Perkinson

North Carolina State Board of Health

**BUSINESS MEETING** 

#### ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SECTION

2:00 p.m.

BUSINESS MEETING CONVENTION CENTER

Main Hall #1

Presiding

Floyd Dunn, Chairman

#### MENTAL HEALTH SECTION

2:00 p.m.

CONVENTION CENTER

Conference Room 2

Program Theme: Let's Put It All Together—For Children

Presiding

Charles W. Pettus, Program

Chairman

Methods of Interagency Coordination

J. Ronald Neufeld

N. C. State Department of Mental Health

Local: A Neighborhood Model for Child Advocacy

John Pelosi, Ph.D.

Learning Institute of North Carolina

Local: Interagency Council and Individual Case Planning

Mrs. Judy Kurzer, ACSW O'Berry Center, Goldsboro

Regional:

State: Family Planning Plans-Interagency Contracts

between State, Regional and Local Levels

Courtland Edwards, ACSW
N. C. Department of Social Services

BUSINESS MEETING Mrs. Donna Gray Boyd, Chairman

#### VENEREAL DISEASE CONTROL SECTION

Presiding: Casey Riley

2:00-4:00 p.m. CONVENTION CENTER

Exhibit Hall, Section 3

Gonorrhea Impact Study

Larry Burt

**Durham County Health Department** 

FADF—A New Concept in Darkfield Microscopy

Mrs. Katie Daniels

North Carolina State Board of Health

Panel Discussion

**BUSINESS MEETING** 

#### STATISTICAL AND EPIDEMIOLOGICAL SECTION

Presiding: Elizabeth J. Coulter, Ph.D.

2:00 p.m.

FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH
Meeting Room

## Spread of Innovative Programs among North Carolina Health Departments and Hospitals

S. Rebecca Davenport University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

John T. Gentry, M.D. University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

James E. Veney, Ph.D. University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

#### Studies of Health Services in North Carolina Communities

#### Charlotte: An Approach to Determining Practice Characteristics in Internal Medicine

O. Dale Williams, Ph.D. University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

Carl B. Lyle, Jr., M.D. Charlotte Medical Clinic

#### Winston-Salem: Utilization Patterns in Community Hospital Emergency Room Services

Natesaier Purshottom, M.D. Bowman Gray School of Medicine

## Chapel Hill: An Evaluation of the Team Approach in the Delivery of Primary Health Care in a Teaching Hospital

Frank Cordle, Ph.D. University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

James A. Bryan, II, M.D. University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

C. Glenn Pickard, M.D.
University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

## Raleigh: Determinants of Physician Utilization in Response to Illness

Barbara S. Hulka, M.D. University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

Lawrence L. Kupper, Ph.D.
University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

John C. Cassell, M.D. University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

## **Program Participants**

- Aabel, Mrs. Evelyn, R.N., M.P.H., Family Nurse Practitioner, School of Nursing, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Barnhill, Howard, Model Cities Community Service Center, Charlotte.
- Barbour, Mrs. Wilma, Supervisor, Registration Unit, Vital Statistics Section, North Carolina State Board of Health, Raleigh.
- Bivins, Miss Emma Carr, M.P.H., Coordinator, Preventive Dentistry Program, Dental Health Division, North Carolina State Board of Health, Raleigh.
- Boyd, Mrs. Donna Gray, ACSW. Inactive at present.
- Bowden, Miss Becky, Consultant, Dental Health Division, North Carolina State Board of Health, Raleigh.
- Bowles, Honorable Hargrove, Senator, North Carolina General Assembly, Greensboro.
- Bryan, James A., II, M.D., Associate Professor, Department of Medicine, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Burt, Larry, Public Health Advisor, Durham County Health Department, Durham.
- Cassel, John C., M.B.B.E, M.P.H., Professor and Head of Epidemiology, School of Public Health, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Compton, Mrs. Betty, R.N., Family Nurse Practitioner, School of Nursing, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Cooke, Miss Asenath, M.S., Nutritionist, Guilford County Health Department, Greensboro.
- Cordle, Frank, Ph.D., Assistant Professor of Epidemiology, School of Public Health, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Coulter, Elizabeth, Ph.D., Associate Professor of Biostatistics, School of Public Health, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill
- Covil, Stacy, Assistant Chief, Sanitation Section, Sanitary Engineering Division, North Carolina State Board of Health, Raleigh.
- Darr, David, Chairman, Forsyth County Commissioners.
- Daniels, Mrs. Katie, Chief, Syphilis Serology Section, Laboratory Division, North Carolina State Board of Health, Raleigh.
- Davenport, S. Rebecca, M.A., Instructor in Health Administration, School of Public Health, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Dawson, Leonard, M.P.H., Instructor, Department of Health Education, School of Public Health, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Debnam, Mrs. Marjorie, Chairman, Health Subcommittee, Community Relations Committee, Raleigh.
- Dunn, Floyd, Sanitarian Supervisor, Moore County Health Department, Carthage.
- Edwards, Courtland, ACSW, Chief, Family and Child Service, North Carolina Department of Social Service, Raleigh.
- Ellingood, Everett H., Jr., M.D., Associate Professor of Psychiatry, Duke University, Durham.
- Evans, Marshall C., Chief, Data Preparation Branch, Division of Data Processing, National Center for Health Statistics, Research Triangle.
- Farrand, Miss Sally, L.P.T., M.P.H., Assistant Chief, Physical Therapy Section, North Carolina State Board of Health, Raleigh.
- Faulkenberry, Mrs. Loletta, R.N., B.S.P.H.N., Public Health Nursing Supervisor, Alamance County Health Department, Burlington.
- Finger, James, M.D., M.P.H., Health Director, Forsyth County Health Department, Winston-Salem.
- Finklea, John F., M.D., Dr.P.H., Chief, Community Research Branch, Environmental Protection Agency, Durham.
- Fitts, Howard M., Ph.D., Chairman, Department of Health Education, North Carolina Central University, Durham.
- Gentry, John T., M.D., M.P.H., Professor of Health Administration, School of Public Health, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Glasson, John, M.D., President-Elect, Medical Society of the State of North Carolina, Durham.

19

- Goulson, Hilton T., Ph.D., Professor of Parasitology and Laboratory Practice, School of Public Health, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Hammer, Carl, M.D., Director, Cumberland County Health Department, Fayetteville.
- Hatch, John, Consultant, Health Services Research Center, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Herzog, William T., M.P.H., Director, Continuing Education Services, Health Affairs, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Hines, Martin P., D.V.M., M.P.H., Director, Division of Epidemiology, North Carolina State Board of Health, Raleigh.
- Holley, Miss Lydia, L.P.T., M.P.H., Associate Professor of Health Administration, School of Public Health, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Hulka, Barbara S., M.D., M.P.H., Assistant Professor of Epidemiology, School of Public Health, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Hutchison, Mrs. Frances C., R.N., B.S., Public Health Nursing Director, Forsyth County Health Department, Winston-Salem.
- Issacs, Walter, Lecturer, Department of Mental Health, School of Public Health, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Jacob, Mrs. Martha, R.N., Public Health Nursing Supervisor, Onslow County Health Department, Jacksonville.
- Johnson, J. P., Assistant Personnel Officer, North Carolina State Board of Health, Raleigh.
- Jones, Ivan D., Ph.D., Department of Food Science, North Carolina State University, Raleigh.
- Jones, W. Burns, M.D., M.P.H., Assistant State Health Director, North Carolina State Board of Health, Raleigh.
- Jordan, John, L.L.B., Legislative Representative.
- Kaltenbach, Charles M., M.P.H., Doctoral Candidate in Parasitology, School of Public Health, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Kennedy, John P., Jr., L.L.B., Associate Director, North Carolina Board of Higher Education, Raleigh.
- Kerbaugh, Mrs. Mildred, M.S., Assistant Director, Laboratory Division, North Carolina State Board of Health, Raleigh.
- Kimmey, James R., M.D., M.P.H., Executive Director, American Public Health Association, Washington, D. C.
- Knott, Mrs. Edna, M.P.H., Chief, Infectious Disease Section, Laboratory Division, North Carolina State Board of Health, Raleigh.
- Koomen, Jacob, M.D., M.P.H., State Health Director, North Carolina State Board of Health, Raleigh.
- Kupper, Lawrence L., Assistant Professor of Biostatistics, School of Public Health, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Kurzer, Mrs. Judy, ACSW, Director of Social Services, O'Berry Center, Goldsboro.
- Lassiter, Mrs. Gwen, Hertford-Gates District Health Department, Winton.
- Lassiter, Mrs. Jean, R.N., M.A., Public Health Nursing Consultant, Division of Community Health, North Carolina State Board of Health, Elizabeth City.
- Lewis, Eloise, R.N., Ed.D., Professor and Dean, School of Nursing, University of North Carolina, Greensboro.
- Lowrimore, Gene R., M.S., Chief, Data Processing Unit, Community Research Branch, Environmental Protection Agency, Durham.
- Lyle, Carl B., M.D., Charlotte Medical Clinic, Charlotte.
- Mainwaring, J. Wesley, Jr., D.D.S., Public Health Dentist, Durham County Health Department, Durham.
- Mathews, Mrs. Jane, M.P.H., Doctoral Candidate in Health Administration, School of Public Health, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Mayes, W. Fred, M.D., M.P.H., Professor and Dean, School of Public Health, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- McMahan, Elizabeth, Ed.D., Professor of Health Education, School of Public Health,
  University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.

- Morgan, Monroe T., Ph.D., Professor and Chairman, Department of Environmental Health, East Tennessee University, Johnson City, Tennessee.
- Morrow, Sarah T., M.D., M.P.H., Health Director, Guilford County Health Department, Greensboro.
- Nelson, C. J., M.S., Research Statistician, Community Research Branch, Environmental Protection Agency, Durham.
- Nelson, William, Ph.D., Chief, Biometry Section, Community Research Branch, Environmental Protection Agency, Durham.
- Neufeld, J. Ronald, Ph.D., Coordinator of Children Services, N. C. Department of Mental Health, Raleigh.
- Palmer, Marvin H., M.T., Buncombe County Health Department, Asheville.
- Palmersheim, James J., Ph.D., Chief, Public Health Statistics Section, Epidemiology Division, North Carolina State Board of Health, Raleigh.
- Pelosi, John, Ph.D., Director, Child Advocacy System Project, Learning Institute of North Carolina, Durham.
- Perkinson, John, Chief, Local Health Administration Section, Community Health Division, North Carolina State Board of Health, Raleigh.
- Pettus, Charles W., Consultant in Statistics, North Carolina Department of Mental Health, Raleigh.
- Pickard, C. Glenn, M.D., Assistant Professor, Department of Medicine, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Pohlit, Nicholas, R.S., M.P.H., Executive Director, National Environmental Health Association, Inc., Denver, Colorado.
- Purshottom, Natesaier, M.D., M.P.H., Associate Professor, Department of Community Health, Bowman-Gray School of Medicine, Winston-Salem.
- Ratledge, Hayes, Area Manager, The Dale Carnegie Courses, Greensboro.
- Reep, Bryan, Dr.P.H., Sandhills Community College, Southern Pines.
- Richardson, William P., M.D., M.P.H., Professor, Department of Community Medicine, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Riley, Casey W., Public Health Advisor, Mecklenburg County Health Department, Charlotte.
- Schneider, Howard A., Ph.D., Director, Institute of Nutrition, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Shirley, Franklin R., Mayor, City of Winston-Salem.
- Smith, Reverend Thomas, Jr., Assistant Rector, St. Timothy's Episcopal Church, Winston-Salem.
- Strawn, Marjorie, M.D., Health Director, Caldwell County Health Department, Lenoir.
- Templeton, Marvin C., Assistant Director, Division of Data Processing, National Center for Health Statistics, Research Triangle.
- Tuttle, Carl, M.P.H., Health Director, Alleghany-Ashe-Watauga District Health Department, Boone.
- Tyler, Miss Emily, M.P.H., Health Educator, Guilford County Health Department, Greensboro.
- Upsom, Miss Donna, North Carolina Heart Association, Chapel Hill.
- Venable, C. Scott, Executive Director, North Carolina Tuberculosis and Respiratory Disease Association, Raleigh.
- Veney, James E., Ph.D., Assistant Professor of Health Administration, School of Public Health, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Voors, A. Wouter, M.D., Dr.P.H., Assistant Professor of Epidemiology, School of Public Health, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Warren, David G., J. D., Associate Professor of Law and Government, Institute of Government, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Watson, Miss June, R.N., M.A., Assistant Director, Ambulatory Patient Care Facility, North Carolina Memorial Hospital, Chapel Hill.
- Williams, O. Dale, Ph.D., Assistant Professor of Biostatistics, School of Public Health, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.
- Wilson, Reverend Charles F., Chaplain, Bowman-Gray School of Medicine, Winston-Salem.
- Woodard, Henry, Public Health Advisor, New York State Department of Health, Albany.

## NORTH CAROLINA PUBLIC HEALTH ASSOCIATION, INC.

Initial Session: June 16, 1909

Organized: June 20, 1911

## Governing Council

1970-1971

#### **EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE**

President President-elect Vice-President

Secretary Treasurer Past-president Mrs. Jean T. Lassiter Miss Lydia Holley Mr. Henry B. Woodard\* Mr. Leonard Dawson Miss Barbara L. Kahn Mrs. Maxine Matheson Mr. C. Scott Venable

\* resigned

#### SECTION CHAIRMEN

Dental Health Environmental Health Health Directors Health Education Laboratory Mental Héalth Nutrition Physical Therapy Public Health Management Public Health Nursing Secretarial Statistics and Epidemiology Venereal Disease Control

Wesley Mainwaring, Jr., D.D.S. Mr. Floyd Dunn Marjorie Strawn, M.D. Miss Emily T. Tyler Mr. Marvin Palmer Mrs. Donna Gray Boyd Miss Asenath Cooke Miss Sally Farrand Mrs. Mildred Kerbaugh Mrs. Martha Jacob Mrs. Gwen E. Lassiter Elizabeth J. Coulter, Ph.D. Mr. Casey M. Riley

#### APHA REPRESENTATIVES

American Public Health Association E. A. Pearson, Jr. D.D.S. Southern Branch, APHA Alternate to APHA and Southern

Branch, APHA

(1971)Corrina S. Sutton, Ph.D. (1971)(1971)

Miss Nettie Day

#### AFFILIATE REPRESENTATIVES

Eastern District, NCPHA Western District, NCPHA

Mrs. Mae Gurlev Miss Claudine Monteith

#### MEMBERS-AT-LARGE

Mrs. Donna Border 1971 Robert C. Fincher, Jr., M.D. 1971 Mrs. Mildred A. Kerbaugh 1972 Sarah T. Morrow, M.D. Howard Fitts, Ph.D. 1972 1973 Mr. Albert Klimas 1973

#### **COMMITTEES 1970-1971**

#### ANNUAL MEETING

Miss Lydia Holley, Chairman Mrs. Jean Lassiter Miss Asenath Cooke Miss Sally Farrand

Miss Sally Farrand Mrs. Martha Jacob Mrs. Gwen E. Lassiter Mr. Floyd Dunn Mr. Casey W. Riley Mr. Marvin Palmer Mrs. Donna Gray Boyd James Finger, M.D. Mrs. Mildred Kerbaugh Wesley Mainwaring, D.D.S. Elizabeth Coulter, Ph.D. Marjorie Strawn, M.D. Miss Emily Tyler

#### **AUDITING**

Mr. Harold Mack Anders, Chairman Mr. J. C. Mills

Mrs. Mildred Bryant

#### **AWARDS**

W. P. Richardson, M.D., Chairman Mrs. Betty Briggs Jacob Koomen, Jr., M.D. Lynn Maddrey, Ph.D.

Mrs. Atha Raulston Mr. Jesse Cannady Miss Anne Parrish

#### BUDGET

Mrs. Maxine Matheson, Chairman Miss Lydia Holley James Finger, M.D. Miss Janice Westaby

Mrs. Jean Lassiter Mr. C. Scott Venable

#### **DEVELOPMENT STUDY**

E. A. Pearson, D.D.S., Chairman

Mrs. Juanita Whitfield Mr. William Haislip Martin Hines, D.V.M. Miss Grace Daniel Mrs. Edna Ceruzzi Miss Janice Westaby Marjorie O. Strawn, M.D. Miss Lucy Lopp Mrs. Velma Joyner

#### **EXHIBITS**

Mr. Martin Ericson, Chairman Mr. Ernest Hornbuckle

Mr. Gilbert Davis

Mr. David McBrayer Mrs. Maxine Matheson Mr. Clark Edwards

#### HEALTH MANPOWER

Mr. David Corkey, Chairman

Mr. William Smith Mr. E. Floyd Dunn Mr. William Jamison Miss Edith Vail

Miss Edith Vail Mr. Carl Tuttle Miss Alyene Pollock Miss Virginia Nelson Mr. James Mize T. G. Hahn, M.D.

Miss Betty Manly

Mrs. Elnora Turner Ralph Young, D.D.S. Lee Holder, Ph.D.

#### LEGISLATIVE

Alfred Siege, M.D., Chairman Isa C. Grant, M.D. (1971)(1972)Sarah T. Morrow, M.D. (1971)George Dudney, D.D.S. Mrs. Margaret Dolan Miss Anne Parrish (1971)(1972)(1972)Mr. Charles Harper (1971)Mr. Stacy Covil (1972).Anders S. Lunde, Ph.D. (1971)

#### LEGISLATIVE STEERING

Mrs. Mildred Kerbaugh, Chairman Ronald Levine, M.D., Vice-Chairman Mr. Charles Harper Mrs. Jean Lassiter

Mr. Marshall Staton Sarah Morrow, M.D. Mrs. C. Scott Venable Alfred Siege, M.D.

#### MEMBERSHIP -

Mr. E. Clark Edwards, Chairman Mrs. Bobbie Marcom Mr. Harold McCallum Mr. William T. Callaway Miss Elizabeth Prendergast Mr. Arthur Danielson

Mrs. Harriet Barr Mrs. Lucille Hahn Mr. Stacy Covil Joan C. Cornoni, Ph.D. Mr. Ray Bayles Miss Sallie Barnes Edwin W. Lipe, D.D.S. Dermot Lohr, M.D.

#### **NOMINATING**

Mrs. Lee Kurtz, Chairman Herman Jent, D.D.S. Miss Carolyn Schindler Mr. Leonard Dawson Mrs. Wilma Barbour

Mr. M. R. Mills Carl Hammer, M.D. James Abernathy, Ph.D. Mr. Henry Woodard Miss Anne Parrish Mr. Reginald McKinnon Mrs. Patsy Martin Mrs. Ruth Richardson

#### **PROGRAM**

Miss Lydia Holley, Chairman Miss Rebecca Bowden Mr. William T. Herzog

W. Burns Jones, M.D. Miss Barbara Kahn

Mrs. Jean Lassiter

#### PROGRAM ADVERTISING

Mr. Ernest Hornbuckle Mr. David McBrayer Mrs. Mary Farthing

Mr. Martin Ericson Mrs. Katie Daniels

#### **SCHOLARSHIP**

Miss Janice Westaby, Chairman (1971)
Carl Van Horn, M.D. (1971) Mrs. Helen Miller (1972)
Mr. Robert L. Hardin (1971) Ralph Young, D.D.S. (1972)
Miss Elizabeth Jukes (1972)

## COMMITTEE TO STUDY RELATIONSHIP TO SOUTHERN BRANCH, APHA

Miss Elizabeth Holley, Chairman Mr. William T. Herzog Mr. William Broadway Mr. C. Scott Venable

Corinna Sutton, Ph.D. Robert Fincher, M.D. Ben Drake, M.D.

#### NCPHA ACTION BOARD

Ronald Levine, M.D. E. A. Pearson, D.D.S.

Alfred Siege, M.D. Mrs. Jean Lassiter

CORRESPONDING MEMBER OF APHA ACTION BOARD Ronald H. Levine, M.D. (1973)

REPRESENTATIVES TO STATE HEALTH COUNCIL

Mrs. Edna Daughty, Chairman

Mrs. Betty West

REPRESENTATIVE TO STATE PERSONNEL BOARD
M. B. Bethel, M.D.

REPRESENTATIVE TO FAMILY LIFE COUNCIL
Miss Sylvia Saxon

REPRESENTATIVE TO ADVISORY COUNCIL OF N. C. REGIONAL MEDICAL PROGRAM
E. A. Pearson, Jr., D.D.S.

REPRESENTATIVE TO SOUTHERN BRANCH EDUCATION PROJECT Corinna S. Sutton, Ph.D.

## PAST PRESIDENTS

Session	Date	President
	June 16, 1909	*Dr. Richard H. Lewis, Raleigh—a
1 .	June 20, 1911	*Dr. Watson S. Rankin, Raleigh—b
2	1912	*Dr. L. B. McBraver, Asheville
3	1913	*Dr. L. N. Glenn, Gastonia
4	1914	*Dr. G. M. Cooper, Raleigh
5	1915	*Dr. William M. Jones, Greensboro
6	1916	*Dr. D. E. Sevier, Asheville
7	1917	*Dr. Arch Cheatham, Durham
8	1918	*Dr. D. C. Absher, Henderson
9	1919	*Dr. J. R. McCracken, Waynesville
10	1920	*Dr. E. F. Long, Lexington
11	1921	*Dr. R. L. Carlton, Winston-Salem
12	1922	*Dr. J. L. Smith, Greensboro
13	1923	Dr. A. C. Bulla, Raleigh
14	1924	*Dr. C. W. Armstrong, Salisbury
15	1925	*Dr. L. L. Williams, Mount Airy
16	1926	*Dr. Sidney E. Buchanan, Concord
17	1927	Dr. E. R. Hardin, Lumberton
18	1928	*Dr. John H. Hamilton, Raleigh
19	1929	*Dr. C. C. Hudson, Greensboro
20	1930	Dr. J. R. Hege, Concord
21	1931	Dr. D. E. Ford, Washington
22	1932	*Dr. J. H. Epperson, Durham
23	1933	*Dr. C. N. Sisk, Rockingham
24	1934	*Dr. Frank M. Register, Kinston
25	1935	Dr. Z. P. Mitchell, Shelby
26	1936	*Dr. R. S. McGeachy, Weldon
27	1937	*Dr. R. M. Buie, Greensboro
28	1938	Dr. M. T. Foster, Fayetteville
29	1939	*Dr. J. A. Morris, Oxford
30	1940	Dr. A. H. Elliott, Wilmington

31	1941	*Dr. John W. Williams, Williamston
32	1942	*Dr. John E. Rhyne, Gastonia
33	1943	*Dr. N. Thomas Ennett, Greenville
34	1944	Dr. William P. Richardson, Chapel Hill
No Convention	1945	Dr. W. K. McDowell, Tarboro
35	1946	*Dr. Robert F. Young, Halifax
36	1947	Dr. M. B. Bethel, Raleigh
37	1948	Dr. H. W. Stevens, Asheville
38	1949	*Dr. Ernest A. Branch, Raleigh
39	1950	*Dr. S. B. McPheeters, Goldsboro
40	1951	Mr. Harold E. Parker, Winston-Salem
41	1952	Dr. John J. Wright, Chapel Hill
42	1953	*Mrs. Louise P. East, Asheville
43	1954	*Dr. E. H. Ellinwood, Greensboro
44	1955	Mrs. Louise Y. Workman, Charlotte
45	1956	Dr. Bertlyn Bosley, Washington, D. C.
46	1957	Dr. E. G. McGavran, Chapel Hill
47	1958	Dr. Lynn Maddry, Raleigh
48	1959	Mr. J. M. Jarrett, Raleigh
49	1960	Dr. Fred G. Pegg, Winston-Salem
50	196 <b>1</b>	Miss Grace Daniel, Raleigh
51	1962	Dr. B. M. Drake, Gastonia
52	1963	Mrs. Betty Potts Keziah, Charlotte
53	1964	Dr. Martin P. Hines, Raleigh
54	1965	Dr. Isa C. Grant, Raleigh
55	1966	Mr. Robert W. Brown, Asheville
56	1967	Dr. Corrina S. Sutton, Raleigh
57	1968	Dr. Maurice Kamp, Charlotte
58	1969	Dr. E. A. Pearson, Jr. Raleigh
59	1970	Mr. C. Scott Venable, Raleigh
60	1971	Mrs. Jean Lassiter, Elizabeth City

<sup>\*</sup> Deceased a—Called Initial Meeting b—Founded the Association

## CONTRIBUTING MEMBERS

#### Exhibiting

- Winchester Surgical Supply Company
   P. O. Box 1355 Charlotte, N. C. 28201
- Lincoln Laboratories, Inc. Laboratory Park Box 1139 Decatur, Illinois 62525
- 3. Hancor, Inc. P. O. Box 450 Findlay, Ohio 45840
- Watts Regulator Company P. O. Box 628 Lawrence, Mass. 01842
- 5. Daly-Herring Company P. O. Box 428 Kinston, N. C. 28501
- 6. G. D. Searle & Company P. O. Box 5110 Chicago, Illinois 60680
- Defiance of The Carolinas, Inc. Drawer 848, Hwy. 74 West Maxton, N. C. 28364
- Chemical & Equipment Sales
   & Service
   3534 Central Avenue
   P. O. Box 12452
   Charlotte, N. C. 28205
- Advanced Drainage of N. C., Inc. Box 1044 Washington, N. C. 27889

- The Upjohn Company
   5251 Peachtree Industrial Blvd. Chamblee, Ga. 30341
- Charles Pfizer & Sons 4360 Northeast Expressway Chamblee, Ga. 30341
- Champion Industries, Inc.
   P. O. Box 4149 North Sta.
   Winston-Salem, N. C. 27105
- Dow Chemical Company 2325 Starbrook Drive Charlotte, N. C. 28202
- McCall Brothers, Inc. 6700 Belhaven Blvd. Charlotte, N. C. 28216

#### **Non-Exhibiting**

- Flow Laboratories, Inc. 1710 Chapman Avenue Rockville, Maryland 20852
- 2. Duke Power Company P. O. Box 2178 Charlotte, N. C. 28201
- 3. Sealtest Foods Box 1787 Charlotte, N. C. 28201

#### **Exhibitors—Non-Profit**

American Cancer Society North Carolina Division 705 W. North St. Raleigh, N. C. 27607